## DONCASTER METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

# COUNCIL

## THURSDAY, 22ND NOVEMBER, 2018

# A MEETING of the COUNCIL was held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, CIVIC OFFICE on THURSDAY, 22ND NOVEMBER, 2018, at 2.00 pm.

## PRESENT:

Chair - Councillor Majid Khan Vice-Chair - Councillor Linda Curran Mayor - Ros Jones Deputy Mayor - Glyn Jones

Councillors Nick Allen, Duncan Anderson, Nigel Ball, Iris Beech, Joe Blackham, Rachael Blake, Nigel Cannings, Bev Chapman, Phil Cole, John Cooke, Mick Cooper, Jane Cox, Steve Cox, George Derx, Nuala Fennelly, Neil Gethin, Sean Gibbons, John Gilliver, Martin Greenhalgh, Pat Haith, John Healy, Rachel Hodson, Charlie Hogarth, Mark Houlbrook, David Hughes, Eva Hughes, Kenneth Keegan, Jane Kidd, Nikki McDonald, Tosh McDonald, Chris McGuinness, Sue McGuinness, Bill Mordue, John Mounsey, David Nevett, Jane Nightingale, Ian Pearson, Andy Pickering, Cynthia Ransome, Tina Reid, Andrea Robinson, Kevin Rodgers, Derek Smith, Frank Tyas, Sue Wilkinson and Paul Wray.

### APOLOGIES:

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Lani-Mae Ball, Susan Durant, Richard A. Jones, Dave Shaw, Austen White and Jonathan Wood.

## 43 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST, IF ANY

There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting.

## 44 MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON 20TH SEPTEMBER, 2018

<u>RESOLVED</u> that the minutes of the Council Meeting held on Thursday, 20th September, 2018, a copy of which had been circulated to each Member, be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

### 45 <u>TO RECEIVE ANY ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE CHAIR OF COUNCIL, THE</u> MAYOR, MEMBERS OF THE CABINET OR THE HEAD OF PAID SERVICE

The Civic Mayor made the following announcement:-

"The Mayor has recently been contacted by AMP Healthcare, who represent a number of GP surgeries in the Borough, requesting the Council acknowledges the important role that Doctors from the Black Asian and Minority Ethnic community have played in improving healthcare in Doncaster over a number of years.

Over the last 70 years, many people from all over the world have come to Britain and Doncaster to work in and support the development of our NHS and improve the health of our residents. An exhibition at the Royal College of GPs has recently highlighted

how South Asian doctors kept the family doctor service thriving, particularly for patients in working-class and inner-city areas, by filling the void largely created by UK doctors choosing to work overseas between the 1940s to the 80s.

Following Black History Month in October and the ongoing celebrations of 70 years of the NHS, we are also mindful of the contribution made by the Windrush generation many of whom went on to work for the NHS which was introduced shortly afterwards. More recently, we have had workers from across Europe, Africa and a host of other nations who have settled in the Borough and helped to improve the health and lives of the people of Doncaster.

I would therefore like to thank AMP Healthcare for bringing this matter to the Mayor's attention and on behalf of the Council, wish to express our thanks and gratitude for the valued and important work undertaken by Doctors, nurses and other health professionals working in our hospitals, surgeries and within our communities to improve the health of our residents."

The Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones, made the following announcement:-

"This Festive Season Doncaster Council will once again be supporting our residents and Town Centre Businesses by offering free Town Centre car parking from 2.00 p.m. at the Markets, St. George's and Colonnades car parks. On Saturdays, Chappell Drive Car Park is free all day and this will be throughout December. Just a reminder that Council run car parks and on-street pay and display areas are also free on Sundays too."

The Chief Executive, Jo Miller, made the following announcement:-

"On behalf of all of the staff, I'd like to wish Mayor Ros Jones all the best on being shortlisted for World Mayor. The World Mayor Prize exclusively invited female Mayors this year to celebrate the contribution that female Mayors make in the context of suffrage this year. Mayor Jones is the only UK entrant on that shortlist and on behalf of all of the staff, we wish you well. Mayor Jones, we hope that you can bring the prize back to Doncaster. If anybody wants to vote, you can find out more about it by Googling, 'World Mayor Prize'. So all the best from all the workforce to you."

## 46 QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC IN ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 13

(A) Question from Mr. Richard Clark to the Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones:-

"Friends of the Earth research shows that Hickleton has the worst air quality in the whole of Yorkshire and ranks amongst the most highly polluted areas nationally. Hickleton was declared an Air Quality Management Area in 2015, but NOx (Nitrogen Oxide) levels have continued to increase and breach national/EU guidelines. The high NOx levels are entirely due to the close proximity of houses to the road making it unsuitable for the volume of traffic passing daily. What actions are DMBC planning to reduce NOx levels and improve air quality?"

The Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones, gave the following reply:-

"Thank you for your question Mr. Clark. It is the case that the annual concentration of nitrogen dioxide along the A635 in Hickleton is the highest recorded within the Borough.

Results also indicate that while concentrations in other areas remain relatively static, Hickleton has seen slight increases over the last 5 years.

The high levels at Hickleton may be attributed to the type and volume of traffic, the proximity of buildings to the roadside, the gradient, bends in the road and the A635 being an arterial route from the A1.

It is clear that improved vehicle emissions are not having the desired effect on Air Quality. It is clear that further measures will be necessary to achieve compliance with the Air Quality objectives. Doncaster Council has a Steering Group in place that is looking at new opportunities to improve Air Quality where we can.

These action plans are currently being updated and will be published shortly.

The measures in the Air Quality Action Plan focus on Active Travel, Planning Guidance, Bus Partnerships and Fleet Recognition Schemes. Thank you for your question Mr. Clark."

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 13.10, Mr. Clark asked the Mayor the following supplementary question:-

"Thank you for your answer. It is clear that the Action Plan measures that have been proposed are insufficient to tackle the poor air quality. From everything that we hear from Doncaster's plans and Barnsley's plans, the volume of traffic is only going to increase further along the A635. We know the poor air quality is directly down to the volume of traffic. I therefore doubt whether any specific measures on air quality being tackled alone, will reduce the NOx levels.

There are 19 houses that directly front on to that road; many of them have got young children and I do not think it is fair to the residents to just look at the cost benefit ratio and ignore health. My question is, we would like a Senior Official from the Council on Air Quality to work with us, so that at least we feel that you are talking to us, you are listening to us and that there may be things that we can agree specifically and jointly that we would find beneficial to us. So my question is, can we work together and can you nominate someone that we can liaise with and work with in order to at least, be sure that you are listening to what we have to say?"

In response, the Mayor gave the following reply:-

"Mr. Clark, I would be delighted to get someone to contact you and they will discuss where they are with the renewal of the action plans coming forward and we will always work with all the public. So, I will get your information passed on; I can pass your email on to an Elected Member, so they can get in touch with you and I will do this via my Portfolio Holder, Councillor Chris McGuinness, who will ensure that it will take place. Thank you."

(B) Question from Mr. Tony Wilson to the Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones:-

"When will work start on an improved road structure from the A1 at Marr to the Dearne Valley Parkway at Goldthorpe to incorporate a by-pass as promised many years ago for the village of Hickleton in particular, but also Marr itself. I have contacted the road haulage association who indicate a 54% increase in road traffic by 2050. I have also contacted Transport for the North, an independent government backed hub with money to help such a scheme. It has been highlighted by Sheffield Council as well as Barnsley and indeed yourselves as an area of concern. 2021, and certainly by 2022, to start such a project, is surely a target for this Council?"

The Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones, gave the following reply:-

"The scheme is recognised as a potential infrastructure project and its aspiration status has been established in various strategic and spatial infrastructure plans including the Unitary Development Plan in 1998. However, the measurable outcomes that trigger current infrastructure investment are comparatively limited for this proposal. The scheme would be very costly, circa £40m, with no identified developer contribution producing a likely low benefit cost ratio.

The scheme would be impacted on by the new HS2 route requiring a crossing of the High Speed Rail line. Also, the scheme would need to be integrated into the Highways England scheme for A1M widening which has not progressed past feasibility stage and is unlikely to be funded before 2025.

Any potential funding through Transport for the North would be post 2027 and there is currently no timetable for Local Growth funding coming to the City Region. When funding does become available, we will still need to provide a robust, compelling economic business case for the scheme providing a good benefit cost ratio.

Given the above, Doncaster has positioned the project within the emerging spatial plans that establish the schemes' status. However, due to the issues outlined in relation to the benefit cost ratio and available funding, it is not likely that the scheme would be seriously considered in the near or medium term future. Thank you for your question. We will continue to pursue it."

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 13.10, Mr. Wilson asked the Mayor the following supplementary question:-

"I am a long time Doncastrian. I have been in contact with the hub at Northern Transport and they are amazed that you have not informed them of the incredible amount of accidents and pollution levels in this village; they are not aware of this. They have said to me that their job is to consult and collaborate with them and they have every opportunity to bring this by-pass forward through collaboration and consultation with the likes of people that I have been in touch with, namely, James Jordan, who is Transport for the North Corporate and Engagement Officer. The A635 concerns are long-term issues, which will be addressed in due course, as you have said. However, they are keen to address strategic priorities and concerns through collaboration and consultation.

Simon Shrouder at Transport for the North, who is Rail Stakeholder Manager, has very serious concerns regarding Hickleton and he wants to hear more. I am asking you as the Mayor to contact Transport for the North immediately and get on with the by-pass?"

In response, the Mayor gave the following reply:-

"We have certainly inputted in to the Sheffield City Region's response to the Transport for the North's priority schemes and we will continue to do so, and will make sure that our Officers ensure that all the people that you are quoting, if you can let us have those names, are also consulted."

## 47 <u>COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGY 2018-21</u>

The Council considered a report, introduced by Councillor Chris McGuinness, Cabinet Member for Communities, Voluntary Sector and the Environment, which sought approval of the Community Safety Strategy 2018-21, following a review of the Strategy.

It was reported that the Community Safety Strategy was a statutory plan which required endorsement by Council, but was produced and owned by the multi-agency Safer Stronger Doncaster Partnership (SSDP), acting as Doncaster's Community Safety Partnership (CSP). The SSDP had a legal duty to work together to tackle crime and disorder, including serious and organised crime, reduce re-offending, tackle anti-social behaviour and to tackle alcohol and substance misuse.

Members noted that the Community Safety Strategy was produced every 3 years and refreshed annually, and had been produced following consultation in respect of the partnership priorities and included a summary of key achievements and outcomes the Council was seeking to achieve.

The notable key achievements over the last year were outlined in detail within the report and included:-

- Tackling Hate Crime
- County-wide Domestic Abuse Perpetrator Programme
- Domestic Abuse Victim Services
- Criminal Damage
- Tackling Anti-Social Behaviour
- Prisons
- Community Tension Monitoring
- Asylum Seeker Support Services
- Prevent Agenda
- Tackling Child Sexual Exploitation
- Tackling Substance Misuse
- Operations and signage to tackle motorcycle nuisance
- Tackling Serious Organised Crime
- Tackling Human Trafficking and Modern Slavery

The key challenges that remained and actions to address them were detailed within the Strategy.

The extensive and robust consultation had identified that the current priorities should remain, as they continued to meet the needs of residents and partners, but that an additional priority of 'tackling serious and organised crime' should be added to reflect the current challenges that this particular type of criminality presents. Therefore, the priorities reflected within the strategy are:-

- Protecting Vulnerable People;
- Reducing Anti-Social Behaviour;
- Reducing Crime and Re-offending;
- Tackling Serious and Organised Crime; and
- Reducing Substance and Alcohol Misuse

Following the presentation of the report, Members were afforded the opportunity to comment on the report.

<u>RESOLVED</u> that the 2018-21 Community Safety Strategy be endorsed.

## 48 STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 2019 - GAMBLING ACT 2005

The Council considered a report, introduced by Councillor Chris McGuinness, Cabinet Member for Communities, Voluntary Sector and the Environment, which sought approval for the adoption of the Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 - Gambling Act 2005, following its triennial review. The route and timetable for adoption were attached as Appendix A to the report for Members' information.

Members were informed that the Licensing Authority was required under the Gambling Act 2005, to produce a Statement of Licensing Policy and to review the Policy at least every 3 years and must be effective by the 31st January, 2019. There were three licensing objectives set out in the Act and these must be addressed within the Authority's Statement of Licensing Policy, namely:-

- preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime;
- ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way; and
- protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling.

It was reported that the Policy set out under the three objectives, the steps that needed to be taken by applicants to address these issues. It also addressed how the Licensing Committee would conduct hearings for applications that could not be resolved.

It was noted that this was the fifth Statement of Policy produced by Doncaster Council under the Gambling Act 2005, which would set out the basis for all licensing decisions to be taken by the Authority over the next three years. The statement had been produced following public consultation including those bodies and persons set out in section 1.10 of the Policy document. A notable addition to the Policy was that the Licensing Authority, in its capacity as a responsible authority under the Gambling Act 2005, would actively seek the views of the Director of Public Health on all applications that the Licensing Authority were required to be notified of. Where applicable, these views would be used to make informed decisions regarding any representation the Licensing Authority may be minded to make.

<u>RESOLVED</u> that the reviewed Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 - Gambling Act 2005, be adopted to take effect from 31st January, 2019.

## 49 <u>NEIGHBOURHOOD PLANNING - ADOPTION 'MAKING' OF THE ARMTHORPE</u> <u>NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PLAN</u>

The Council considered a report presented by Councillor Chris McGuinness, Cabinet Member for Communities, Voluntary Sector and the Environment, which proposed the adoption of the Armthorpe Neighbourhood Development Plan which would form part of Doncaster's statutory Development Plan.

Members noted that Neighbourhood Planning was introduced by the Localism Act 2011, which gave Town/Parish Councils and communities the power to write their own plans and take more control of planning for their areas. Armthorpe Parish Council had produced a Neighbourhood Plan for their Parish area and had subsequently undergone a successful examination and Referendum.

In accordance with Section 38A of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) the Council was required to adopt a Neighbourhood Plan as part of the Development Plan, within 8 weeks of the date of a successful Referendum.

It was noted that out of an electorate of 10,857, 1,535 electors had cast their vote, with 1,191 people voting in favour to adopt the Neighbourhood Plan, 339 people voting against and 5 rejected ballot papers, resulting in a 14.14% turnout.

The Neighbourhood Plan had been subject to a thorough consultation; the methodology had been examined and had been independently assessed. The Neighbourhood Plan was successful at Referendum and in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, had met the basic conditions. Therefore, in accordance with the Act, the Neighbourhood Plan should now be adopted as part of the Development Plan for Doncaster.

To conclude, Councillor McGuinness commended fellow Local Ward Members, Parish Councillors and the residents of Armthorpe for the contribution they had made in the production of the Neighbourhood Plan.

<u>RESOLVED</u> the Armthorpe Neighbourhood Plan be adopted as part of the statutory Development Plan for the Borough.

50 LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND HOUSING ACT 1989 - 6 MONTH REVIEW OF THE PROPORTIONAL ALLOCATION OF SEATS ON COMMITTEES AND SUB-COMMITTEES (MINUTE NO.13 (19) - 18TH MAY, 2018)

Further to the above Minute, the Council considered a report on the mid-year review of the proportional allocation of seats on Committees and Sub-Committees appointed by the Council.

It was reported that since the Annual Meeting in May, 2018, a by-election had been held on 14th June, 2018 following a casual vacancy that had arisen in the Town Ward, which resulted in Councillor Tosh McDonald being elected to the vacant seat. However, Members were informed that the overall proportional implications with regard to the proportional allocation of seats on Committees and Sub-Committees appointed by Council remained unchanged, and therefore, no re-calculation of proportionality was required.

Members noted that as part of this review, all Political Groups were also given the opportunity to revise their existing appointments on Committees and Sub-Committees of the Council. Subsequently, the Labour Group had taken the opportunity to revise its existing allocated appointments on Committees and proposed the following changes:-

- Councillor John Gilliver replace Councillor Andrea Robinson on the Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education; and
- Councillor Tosh McDonald replace Councillor Susan Durant on the Communities and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel.

In noting that Chairs and Vice-Chairs to Committees and Sub-Committees of the Council were appointed at the Council's Annual Meeting on 18th May, 2018, Members were informed that Councillor Eva Hughes had resigned her position of Chair of the Planning Committee. Therefore, as a consequence of Councillor Eva Hughes' resignation, Council was requested to determine the appointment of a replacement Chair of the Committee for the remaining period of the current 2018/19 Municipal Year.

Subsequently, it was MOVED by the Deputy Mayor, Councillor Glyn Jones and SECONDED by Councillor John Healy that the Vice-Chair, Councillor Iris Beech, be appointed Chair of the Planning Committee.

On being put to the meeting, the Motion was declared CARRIED.

Therefore, as the position of Vice-Chair of the Planning Committee had become vacant, it was MOVED by the Deputy Mayor, Councillor Glyn Jones and SECONDED by Councillor David Hughes that Councillor Sue McGuinness be appointed Vice-Chair of the Planning Committee.

On being put to the meeting, the Motion was declared CARRIED.

## RESOLVED:-

- to note that there has been no change in the overall proportional implications with regard to the proportional allocation of seats on Committees and Sub-Committees appointed by Council since the Annual Meeting on 18th May, 2018;
- (2) that Councillor John Gilliver be appointed as a Labour Group representative to replace Councillor Andrea Robinson to serve on the Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education;
- (3) that Councillor Tosh McDonald be appointed as a Labour Group representative to replace Councillor Susan Durant to serve on the Communities and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel;
- (4) Councillor Iris Beech be appointed as the new Chair of the Planning Committee for the remaining period of the 2018/19 Municipal Year; and
- (5) Councillor Sue McGuinness be appointed as Vice-Chair of the Planning Committee for the remaining period of the 2018/19 Municipal Year.

## 51 <u>TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING MOTION PROPOSED BY COUNCILLOR</u> <u>RACHAEL BLAKE AND SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR MARK HOULBROOK, IN</u> <u>ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 16.1:-</u>

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 16.1, a Motion was submitted by Councillor Rachael Blake and Seconded by Councillor Mark Houlbrook:-

"Earlier this year, this Council agreed to support the Motor Neurone Disease Charter and we have continued to keep in touch with carers and the South Yorkshire Group. We can do our part as a Council in ensuring our services are there to support and work with people who have been diagnosed and their carers but it is important that we recognise that changes need to be made nationally. One such national issue is the Scrap 6 Months campaign.

Within the benefit system, people with unpredictable terminal illness are being unfairly excluded for the Special Rules for Terminal Illness process.

The Special Rules fast track process currently requires a reasonable expectation of death within 6 months. This simply does not work for people living with complex and unpredictable terminal conditions. Instead they are forced to go through the standard application process which is inappropriate and insensitive for people with a terminal illness like motor neurone disease.

Notify the Secretary of State for Work and Pensions that this Council supports the MND Association's and Marie Curie's call for the Government to support a change in the law defining a terminal illness so that the 6 months restriction is scrapped.

The second reading of the Access to Welfare (Terminal Illness Definition) Bill takes place on 23 November and this Council supports the passing of this Bill."

The Chair afforded all Members in the Chamber the opportunity to speak on the Motion.

A vote was taken on the Motion proposed by Councillor Rachael Blake, which was declared as follows:-

<u>For - 50</u>

<u>Against - 0</u>

<u>Abstain - 0</u>

On being put to the meeting, the Motion was declared CARRIED.

<u>RESOLVED</u> that earlier this year, this Council agreed to support the Motor Neurone Disease Charter and we have continued to keep in touch with carers and the South Yorkshire Group. We can do our part as a Council in ensuring our services are there to support and work with people who have been diagnosed and their carers but it is important that we recognise that changes need to be made nationally. One such national issue is the Scrap 6 Months campaign.

Within the benefit system, people with unpredictable terminal illness are being unfairly excluded for the Special Rules for Terminal Illness process.

The Special Rules fast track process currently requires a reasonable expectation of death within 6 months. This simply does not work for people living with complex and unpredictable terminal conditions. Instead they are forced to go through the standard application process which is inappropriate and insensitive for people with a terminal illness like motor neurone disease.

Notify the Secretary of State for Work and Pensions that this Council supports the MND Association's and Marie Curie's call for the Government to support a change in the law defining a terminal illness so that the 6 months restriction is scrapped.

The second reading of the Access to Welfare (Terminal Illness Definition) Bill takes place on 23 November and this Council supports the passing of this Bill.

## 52 QUESTIONS BY ELECTED MEMBERS IN ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES 15.2 AND 15.3

A. Questions on Notice

No questions on Notice from Elected Members had been received for this meeting.

# B. <u>Questions Without Notice</u>

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15.2, the Chair of Council sought questions from Elected Members during question time.

- A. <u>Questions to the Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones</u>
  - Q. Councillor Tosh McDonald asked the following question:-

"It's been mentioned already in this session about the Town Centre and the need to sort out problems such as begging, such as rough sleeping and substance abuse. We had the seminar a few weeks ago where we discussed it. Can you give us an update on how well we are doing at clearing these issues up in the Town Centre, but also attached to that, problems that may be coming about by migration into the residential areas around the Town Centre. Only recently, I have spoken to somebody on Craithie Road, where the alleyway between Craithie Road and Zetland Road, has had a rough sleeper. It does seem to be moving further out of the Town. Can you give us an update on how things are; thank you?"

A. The Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones, gave the following response:-

"We are certainly seeing some improvement, but we have always said it will not be an easy issue. However, I am going to pass this to Councillor Chris McGuinness because he has got the most up to date statistics that we have got. Thank you."

A. Councillor Chris McGuinness gave the following response:-

"I did have some figures on the cohort of people, but I don't have them at the moment. I think your main issue is about the displacement. If you recall, there was a senior Police Officer sat where I am now, who in September said if there are issues or if people perceive issues of displacement, they would do everything that they could to address it. If you want to give me some of the areas that you are concerned about, I will take that up with them first thing tomorrow and next week. We have done the Town Centre earlier on and I think there is some real progress there. The problem is, one of the things I keep coming back to is every now and again, somebody new presents themselves in any particular week and they are not necessarily from Doncaster. But, I will follow up on the displacement issue. Thanks."

Q. Councillor Rachel Hodson asked the following question:-

"Ros, in the Chancellor's budget last month, he pledged that austerity was coming to an end. So I ask, how much additional funding will Doncaster be getting. Is austerity really over for the people of Doncaster, or is it still actually the case that we are having to cut services and our budgets?"

A. The Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones, gave the following response:-

"I would be delighted if I could sit here today and say austerity is over as far as this Council's budget is concerned. We know we are facing £24m of deficits that we need to make good in this year. We have had one off funding, so in this financial year, we got £2m for highways and potholes and £1.5m for Adults and Social Care. A further £2.6m for Adults and Children's Social Care next year. However, these figures are drops in the ocean; they go nowhere near meeting the demands of our services.

We are facing further Government cuts. We expect that we will get our announcement of what we are going to get this year on December 6th. I will be so elated if I can come back to this Council and say all the further

cuts that have actually been levied on us, have been waived and we are now truly going to start seeing increases in the funding. But, what we are actually given at this moment is one off funding, which is no way to run any organisation. You cannot plan with that in order to deliver.

As you know, we brought forward the Medium Term Financial Plan. We are having to go back and revisit that. We have continuing growth in Children's and Adults Social Care requirements. We are given a levy that we can put on which goes nowhere near to what we need. We have just approved a one off sum of £6m because of our Children's Services; that's the Trust, which requires funding because more of our children are requiring this funding. And do you know what, universal credit does have an influence on this, as more and more families are under the strain of this. Therefore, December 6th will be the date that we know the figure. I do not expect 'mega' sums of monies. What I would say to any Government is we need to have one assurity, but also funding on a one off basis will not deal with the problems that we are facing. As I say, we have got £24m that we will have to find in 2019/20. I am sure that we will find ways to bridge this gap, but we are like very many other Authorities within this country that are creaking at the seams. So, thank you for your question. I wish I was giving you the right answer of saying austerity is really over and funding is being restored, but I do not believe that will be the case, come December 6th. We will wait and see."

Q. Councillor Chris McGuinness asked the following question:-

"There is a question coming, trust me. The report that Councillor Nigel Ball referred to earlier from the United Nations. I just want to read a couple of sentences out from that. It says here that 14m people, that's a fifth of the population of the UK, live in poverty, 4m of these are more than 50% below the poverty line and 1.5m are destitute, unable to afford basic essentials. The widely respected Institute of Fiscal Studies, predicts a 7% rise in child poverty between 2015 and 2022. Various sources predict child poverty rates as high as 40%. For almost every one in two children to be poor in 21st Century Britain, is not just a disgrace, but a social calamity. Does the Mayor agree?"

A. The Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones, gave the following response:-

"Of course it's a social calamity, because it's not us saying this, it is the independent Review Panels, and therefore we need to see greater funding and greater sums of money coming our way and the surety of that funding. It's not only us saying this, it's across the country."

B. <u>Questions to the Deputy Mayor, Councillor Glyn Jones, Cabinet Member for</u> <u>Housing and Equalities</u>

There were no questions put to the Deputy Mayor, Councillor Glyn Jones, Cabinet Member for Housing and Equalities.

C. <u>Questions to Councillor Nigel Ball, Cabinet Member for Public Health, Leisure</u> and Culture There were no questions put to Councillor Nigel Ball, Cabinet Member for Public Health, Leisure and Culture.

D. <u>Questions to Councillor Joe Blackham, Cabinet Member for Highways, Street</u> <u>Scene and Trading Services</u>

There were no questions put to Councillor Joe Blackham, Cabinet Member for Highways, Street Scene and Trading Services.

E. <u>Questions to Councillor Rachael Blake, Cabinet Member for Adult Social</u> <u>Care</u>

There were no questions put to Councillor Rachael Blake, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care.

F. <u>Questions to Councillor Nuala Fennelly, Cabinet Member for Children, Young</u> <u>People and Schools</u>

There were no questions put to Councillor Nuala Fennelly, Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Schools.

- G. <u>Questions to Councillor Chris McGuinness, Cabinet Member for Communities,</u> <u>Voluntary Sector and the Environment</u>
  - Q. Councillor lan Pearson asked the following question:-

"Back to your favourite subject of the day. There have been many comments about the sterling work being done by the Council in improving Doncaster and the surrounding areas, but comments have been made about 'interlopers' who come to beg for the day in Doncaster and the impact in and around the Railway Station. Would you agree that more help from the British Transport Police, that are not controlled by our own Police and Crime Commissioner, would be a good step regarding inter-city begging and the information shared by the British Transport Police when it happens with the same people at numerous Railway Stations?"

A. Councillor Chris McGuinness, gave the following response:-

"I certainly do. As far as I am aware, the British Transport Police have been involved to some degree in 'Complex Lives', but I will find out the extent of that next week and I will come back to you."

H. <u>Questions to Councillor Bill Mordue, Cabinet Member for Business, Skills and</u> <u>Economic Development</u>

There were no questions put to Councillor Bill Mordue, Cabinet Member for Business Skills and Economic Development.

I. <u>Questions to Councillor Jane Nightingale, Cabinet Member for Customer and</u> <u>Corporate Services</u>

There were no questions put to Councillor Jane Nightingale, Cabinet Member for Customer and Corporate Services.

J. <u>Questions to Councillor Austen White, Chair of the Audit Committee</u>

There were no questions put to Councillor Austen White, Chair of the Audit Committee.

K. <u>Questions to Councillor Phil Cole, Chair of the Elections and Democratic</u> <u>Structures Committee</u>

There were no questions put to Councillor Phil Cole, Chair of the Elections and Democratic Structures Committee.

- L. <u>Questions to Councillor Rachael Blake, Chair of the Health and Wellbeing</u> <u>Board</u>
  - Q. Councillor John Cooke asked the following question:-

"I had a letter recently from one of my residents regarding flash glucose monitoring. It is obviously a great concern to him. If you can indulge me just a minute. It is only a short one. I can read it out for you. It says flash glucose monitoring is a life changing diabetes technology that helps people monitor their blood glucose levels. It is easier to use and less painful than the current finger pricking tests. It can also help improve people's self-management. This is vital in helping to reduce the risk of serious and classic long-term diabetes related complications. In addition, it is also cost effective for people with diabetes who are treated with insulin and tested frequently. The NHS announced it could be made available on prescription in November 2017. Wales and around 65% of areas in England have already made it available. However, in my CCG, it is not. This means only those who can afford the cost of over £1,000 a year can benefit. It has become a real post code lottery. He asked me basically, can we look in to remedying this situation?"

A. Councillor Rachael Blake gave the following response:-

"Thank you for your question. I also received similar emails, as did a number of colleagues, so I had a meeting with the Chief Executive of the CCG and that system is now available for people in Doncaster, as long as they meet the NICE guidelines. So, if you want to send the information about that particular person to me, I can find out whether or not they will meet those guidelines. But yes, there has been concern raised about it and the CCG has now said that it is available in Doncaster. If anybody has similar residents that are asking the same question, please let them know that it is available. They obviously need to get it through their G.P. who will let them know whether they are eligible or not. So, that will hopefully avoid the post code lottery. What we can't influence is those national guidelines which dictate who are the people who would most benefit from that situation." M. <u>Questions to Councillor Kevin Rodgers, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny</u> <u>Management Committee</u>

There were no questions put to Councillor Kevin Rodgers, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee.

# 53 TO RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE FOLLOWING JOINT AUTHORITIES

RESOLVED that the minutes of the following Joint Authorities be noted:-

- A. Sheffield City Region Combined Authority held on 10th September, 2018.
- B. Sheffield City Region Local Enterprise Partnership Board held on 17th September, 2018.
- C. South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority held on 17th September, 2018.
- D. South Yorkshire Pensions Authority held on 4th October, 2018.
- E. South Yorkshire Pensions Authority Local Pensions Board held on 4th October, 2018
- F. South Yorkshire Police and Crime Panel held on 3rd September, 2018.
- G. Team Doncaster Strategic Partnership held on 17th July and 28th August, 2018

CHAIR:\_\_\_\_\_

DATE:\_\_\_\_\_